ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SCCI AL SERVI CES
STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 4, 2003
3:02 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Peggy Wl son, Chair
Representative Carl Gatto, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Kelly Wl f
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssna
Representative Mary Kapsner
MEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Cheryll Heinze
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS

Board of Education and Early Devel opnent

Shirley Holl oway - Juneau
Ri chard Mauer - Delta Junction
Tim Scott - Anchorage
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED
HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 8
Requesting the Governor to declare March 16 - 22, 2003,
I nhal ants and Poi sons Awar eness \Wek.
- MOVED HCR 8 QUT OF COW TTEE
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS

Board of Education and Early Devel opnent

Syl via Reynol ds - Sol dot na
Rex Rock - Point Hope

- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

PREVI QUS ACTI ON

to be

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -1- March 4, 2003



BILL: HCR 8
SHORT TI TLE: | NHALANTS AND PO SONS AWARENESS WEEK
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE( S) KAPSNER

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

02/ 19/ 03 0246 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 19/ 03 0246 (H HES

03/ 04/ 03 (H HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

SHI RLEY HOLLOWAY, Ph.D., Appointee

to the Board of Education and Early Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Board of
Education and Early Devel opnent and answered questions from the
comittee.

RI CHARD MAUER, Appoi nt ee

to the Board of Education and Early Devel opnent

Del ta Junction, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Board of
Education and Early Devel opnment and answered questions from the
comm ttee.

TI M SCOIT, Appoi nt ee

to the Board of Education and Early Devel opnent

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Board of
Education and Early Devel opnent and answered questions from the
comittee.

ZOANN MURPHY, Health and Social Services Planner

Community Heal th and Enmergency Medical Services Section

D vision of Public Health

Department of Health and Social Services

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HCR 8 and answered
guestions fromthe commttee.

SYLVI A REYNOLDS, Appoi nt ee

to the Board of Education and Early Devel opnent
Sol dot na, Al aska

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 2- March 4, 2003



POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Board of
Education and Early Devel opnment and answered questions from the
conmittee.

REX ROCK, Appointee

to the Board of Education and Early Devel opnent

Poi nt Hope, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Board of
Education and Early Devel opnent and answered questions from the
committee.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-21, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R PEGGY W LSON cal |l ed the House Health, Education and Socia
Services Standing Commttee neeting to order at 3:02 p.m
Representatives WIlson, Gatto, Seaton, and WIf were present at
the call to order. Representatives Cissna and Kapsner arrived
as the meeting was in progress.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS5

Board of Education and Early Devel opnent

CHAI R WLSON announced that the first order of business would be
confirmation hearings for the appointees to the Board of
Education and Early Devel opnent. Chair W1 son announced that
t he appoi ntees woul d be testifying via tel econference.

Nunber 0072

SHI RLEY HOLLOWAY, Ph.D., Appointee to the Board of Education and
Early Devel opnent, gave a brief history of her 40-year career in
education, 33 years of those in Al aska. She said that she hopes
her experience, passion, and energy can help to continue to
shape the best public education systemfor Al aska.

Nunmber 0174

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if a new commssioner of the
Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnent would be soneone
who had worked for her in the past.

DR. HOLLOWMAY replied that is a distinct possibility.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 3- March 4, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if it would be a problem working for
soneone she previously had working under her.

Nunber 0243

DR. HOLLOWMAY replied that the comm ssioner of the Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnent serves at the pleasure of the
governor and the Board of Education and Early Devel opnent. She
added that the board is a governance and policynmaki ng body, not
an adm nistrative or managenent body as the departnent is. Dr.
Hol loway said that there is a distinct line drawn between those
who manage and t hose who set policy.

Number 0294

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON nmade a notion to advance the confirmation
of Shirley Holloway, appointee to the Board of Education and
Early Developnent, to the joint session for consideration.
There being no objection, the confirmation of Shirley Holl oway
was advanced.

Number 0377

RI CHARD MAUER, Appointee to the Board of Education and Early
Devel opnent, told the commttee he |ooks forward to serving on
the board because he believes the education system needs to be
fully accountabl e. M. Muer said he wants to assure that the
state has adequate facilities and equitable funding. He told
the commttee he sees the new federal legislation, "No Child
Left Behind Act,” (NCLB) as an opportunity to work for the
advancenment of the State's goals in inproving public education.
He said there needs to be sone accomodation for Alaska's
uni queness. M. Mauer told the commttee he has invested many
years in education and would like to continue his service to the
State of Al aska.

Nunmber 0486

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked M. Mauer if he belongs to any other
organi zations that the commttee would be famliar wth.

MR MAUER replied that he is the past president of the
Association of Al aska School Boards [and continues to be a
director] and has served on the local school board in Delta
Juncti on.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -4- March 4, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if M. Mauer sees a conflict in
serving on the Board of Education and Early Devel opnent and
still serving as a nenber of the Association of Al aska School
Boar ds.

MR. MAUER said he sees no conflict whatsoever; in fact, he told
the coonmttee he believes one role conplenents the other.

Number 0545
CHAIR WLSON asked if there is a specific focus he would want to
pursue in his service on the Board of Education and Early

Devel opnent .

MR. MAUER told the commttee he is very interested in the school
designator program and efforts to redesign it to neet the NCLB

requirenents. He told the commttee this program will be going
to the peer review commttee at the U S. Departnent of Education
on March 12. He said this is a critical elenent in assisting
schools to inprove student achievenent. M. Mauer told the

committee he sees this program as very constructive and he wants
to see it through.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked M. Mauer if NCLB would make the
school desi gnator program unnecessary.

MR. MAUER replied that the school designator programis set in
state law, so the state would be working on this program even if
there were no NCLB

Nunmber 0756

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON nmade a notion to advance the confirmation
of Richard Mauer, appointee to the Board of Education and Early
Devel opnent, to the joint session for consideration. There
being no objection, the confirmation of R chard Mauer was
advanced.

Nunmber 0842

TIM SCOIT, Appointee to the Board of Education and Early
Devel opnent, gave the <conmittee a brief history of his
educati onal and professional background. He told the commttee
he currently is the chief executive officer for a charter schoo
and has been intimately involved in school reform for the past
four vyears. He said that he believes his diverse background

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 5- March 4, 2003



will enable himto neet the conplex challenges facing the state
in the inplenentation of the NCLB.

Nunmber 0926

CHAIR WLSON asked M. Scott at what point he sees it necessary
to institute charter schools versus working with the traditiona
public schools to inprove education.

MR. SCOIT replied that he sees no point where the state should
ever stop trying to inprove public education in the traditiona

school s. Charter schools are statutorily available and an
out standi ng option. The approval process for instituting a
charter school is a long and involved process. Local school

districts are the sponsoring agent and he believes that is a
good thing, although with sone of his peers that is not a
popul ar vi ew. M. Scott also said he believes charter schools
are helping traditional schools to make changes to inprove
educati on.

Nunber 1029

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if he was a participant in the
creation of a charter school

MR. SCOTT replied that he has been involved with the creation of
Frontier Charter School in Anchorage.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked how nmany charter schools are in
Anchorage not including Frontier Charter School.

MR. SCOIT replied that there are only three.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked M. Scott if he considers them to be
successful .

MR. SCOIT said that depends on how success is defined. | f
success is defined by enrollnment, then the schools have been
successful. He explained that when it comes to charter schools,
they each have their own flavor. He cited one case where a
charter school closed because it got into a financial bind. He
said that particular <charter school served an inportant
popul ation, had sonme good ideas, and did sonme good things.
However, it was unsuccessful financially.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if charter schools excel over
traditional public schools.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 6- March 4, 2003



MR. SCOTT replied that he knows Famly Partnership does because
it is involved in the performance review in the district.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked how many students are typically in a
charter school classroom

MR, SCOIT said that depends on the makeup of the charter. He
said that Fam |y Partnership School serves hone school kids, so
all the school has is four walls and a desk. He said he knows
that other charter schools in the district tend to have 20 and
| ess.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if the charter school M. Scott is
i nvol ved with has a buil di ng.

MR. SCOIT told the conmttee the charter school has an office
building in md-towmn, and is set up like a business with a
records office and support to parents. He said the children do
not neet at that | ocation.

Nunmber 1198

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON nmade a notion to advance the confirmation
of Tim Scott, appointee to the Board of Education and Early
Devel opnent, to the joint session for consideration. There
bei ng no objection, the confirmation of Tim Scott was advanced.

CHAIR WLSON told the coonmttee the two remai ni ng appoi ntees are
not on line yet, so the conmmttee will come back to their
confirmati on as they are avail abl e.

HCR 8- 1 NHALANTS AND PO SONS AWARENESS WEEK

Nunber 1250

CHAI R WLSON announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 8, "Requesting the Governor to
declare March 16 - 22, 2003, to be Inhalants and Poisons
Awar eness \Wek. "

Nunber 1275
REPRESENTATI VE = KAPSNER, sponsor of HCR 8, expl ai ned the
i nportance of the resolution before the commttee, which asks

the governor to proclaim Inhalant and Poison Abuse Awareness
Week. She told the conmttee the proclamation would coincide

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -7- March 4, 2003



with the national Inhalant and Poisons Awareness Wek on March
16- 22. Representative Kapsner said she knows nmany of the
menbers are aware of the serious problem inhalant abuse is for
Al aska; however, she believes there is a long way to go in
educating Al aska and the nation in understanding the preval ence
of inhalant abuse and the resulting danmage that can occur.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER poi nted out that inhalants are not drugs;

nost of the substances people huff are not contraband. There
are over 1,400 comonly used and |egal household, office, and
cl assroom products that can be used to get high. [Inhalant highs

are the result of intensive penetration of toxic chemcals into
the brain tissue, where they are capable of causing irreversible
damage. She told the committee there is a perception that this
may be a rural problem or a Native problem but it is not. It
is a national epidemnc. In a 1999 nationw de survey of 8th
graders 19.5 percent said they had used inhalants, conpared with
22 percent who have tried marijuana and hashi sh. The wuse is
conpar abl e.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER told the commttee that in addition to

brain, liver, lung, and bone marrow damage, there is evidence
that chronic abuse of sonme inhalants causes chronosomal and
fetal damage. I nhal ant abuse can occur in children as young as
four, five, or six years old, if they are huffing with their
ol der brothers and sisters. I nhal ant abuse is very comon in
adol escent years, and it is often recognized as a gateway to
abuse of other illicit substances. Seventy percent of one group

of substance abusers who were in treatnment indicated they
started with inhalants. Seventy percent said they would go back
to inhalants if alcohol was not available. Many treat nent
facilities enployees use gas tank |ocks for their autonobiles,
because so nany people in treatnent go out |ooking for a high
and go to their gas tanks.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER expl ai ned that because the chenmicals and
i nhal ants enter the lungs in such high concentrations, they have
a higher toxic profile than other types of drug abuse. It
actually takes four to six weeks to detoxify inhalant abusers
just so they can start treatnent.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER sai d she hopes awareness of the signs of
use becone w dely known. Sonme of the common signs include paint
or stains on the body, «clothing, rags, or bags; m ssing
abuseabl e substances from the hone; spots or sores around the
nmout h; red or runny eyes or nose; a chem cal breath or odor, and
a dazed, drunk, or dizzy appearance. O her signs which may

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 8- March 4, 2003



acconpany abuse are nausea, | oss of appetite, anxi ety,
excitability, irritability, rel entl essness, unexpl ai ned
noodi ness, slurred or disoriented speech, and outbursts or
anger.

Number 1530

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked what a common profile of an inhal ant
abuser woul d be.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER replied that there are no typica
profiles for inhalant abusers. She said sniffers and huffers
are represented by both sexes; they are urban and rural; and
they cone from all socioeconom c groups throughout the country
and Al aska. She told the commttee inhalant abusers range in
age from el enentary and m ddl e-school age children to adults.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO agreed that adults use inhalants - snoking,
for instance. He noted that perfumes are also a form of
i nhal ant .

Nunmber 1566

CHAIR WLSON said as a nurse, she has worked in the energency
room when an individual has cone in who has been involved in a
chem cal spill. She said in a case when victins have inhaled
fumes, they nay appear fine initially, hospital staff watch the
victinms closely because the damage to the lungs nay appear |ater
when they may start experiencing breathing problens. Chair
Wl son asked if inhalant abusers experience the same type of
synpt ons.

Number 1599

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER said she believes wth accidental
i nhal ants there may be a delay before the effects woul d appear

however, with huffing the response is nuch quicker. There is an
instant high, which is the reason why sonme people prefer
i nhal ants to contraband drugs. The inhal ant goes through the
l ungs, and is an instant high. In talking with village public
safety officers [VPSO, [she has found] they are very concerned
about inhal ant abuse. One reason is that it is not illegal and
it is not even a violation of state law to huff. Another reason
is that inhalants dull the pain receptors. She told the
committee VPSCs are only equipped with a billy club, and even if
they are only trying to subdue the victim or inhalant abuser

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 9- March 4, 2003



such a person 1is alnbst unstoppable because his/her pain
receptors are not worKking.

Nunber 1672

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER told the commttee that with this limted
anount of know edge, nost Alaskans do not know enough about
inhalants and the seriousness of its abuse. She said her
primary concern is for the young people who abuse inhalants, not
knowing there can be irreversible brain damage, bone marrow
damage, and |ung damage. She said young children are setting
thensel ves up to have devel opnentally disabled children, and the
cost to the state is really quite exorbitant when people becone
retarded from the abuse. The synptons are a lot |ike Fetal
Al cohol Syndrone [FAS]. One of the mpjor differences that she
has heard from Jim Henkel man [ Statew de Qutreach Coordinator,
Tundr a Swan Tr eat ment Program Yukon- Kuskokwi m Heal t h
Corporation] is that FAS children do not have a |ong-term nmenory
and do have a lot of childhood nenories. Most people who are
i nhal ant abusers say that they lost their nenory after they
started huffing. They have the long-term nenory; they just do
not have the short-term nenory. Representative Kapsner told the
commttee Jim Henkel man, who is the state's expert on inhal ant
abuse, would like to give the committee a presentation on this
subject. Representative Kapsner said she would like to see this
resolution pass and hopes the governor proclains Mrch 16
through the 22 as I nhalants and Poi sons Awar eness Wek.

Nunber 1741

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER noted that sone statistics that were
provided to the conmttee in a brochure say that children five
years and under account for the mpjority - 53 percent - of the
exposures to poison. The graph of substances involved |ike
cleaning supplies in household exposures shows 125 cases in
peopl e over 20 years old. Representative Kapsner said this does
not appear to be accidental poisoning. It | ooks nore as though
huffi ng was invol ved.

Nunber 1754

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA comented that Representative Kapsner's
statenent about the pain receptors nade her realize what m ght
have happened with a foster daughter. She told the commttee as
a teen, her foster daughter was exchanging a jar of gasoline and
huffing with a cousin who was burned badly when the cousin took
a drag on a cigarette, it fell into the jar, and it flamed up,

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -10- March 4, 2003



melting one side of her face. Representative Ci ssna said she
believes inpairnent of the girl's pain receptors contributed to
this tragic event. In a normal situation an individual would
drop the jar, but if a person were huffing he/she would have
| ost that instant reaction. She asked if there is any record of
t hese kinds of accidents, and if so, how nany there are.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER sai d Ji m Henkel man m ght know t he answer.

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA said inhalant abuse and the effects on
kids is nmuch nore extraordinary than al cohol. It is far worse
than can be i magi ned.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER agreed and said it is a silent epidemc
and is claimng the lives of a |ot of people nationw de.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said that the nore volatile a substance is,
the nore valuable it is to sonmeone that is an inhalant abuser
If the substance is volatile then it beconmes a gas very easily,
and is flammble and very hazardous. Representative Gatto
pointed out that once it gets into the lungs it is transported
quickly to an individual's heart and then to the brain. It
takes only seconds to have an inpact on individual's brain -
anesthetizing it. He said inhaling alcohol is also pretty
i nst ant aneous, not ethyl alcohol that is normally ingested, but
wood al cohol . Representative Gatto said it is an enornously
horrible thing to do to anything that is alive. He expressed
concern for a nethod of changi ng abusers' behaviors, and said he
believes this resolution is a start.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER noted that there is a zero fiscal note on
the resol ution. She shared one nore point with the conmttee,
that inhalants are the fourth nost abused substances [foll ow ng
al cohol, tobacco, and marijuana] anong hi gh school students.

Number 1952

ZOANN MJRPHY, Health and Social Services Planner, Conmunity
Health and Enmergency Medical Services Section, D vision of
Public Health, Departnent of Health and Soci al Servi ces,
testified in support of HCR 8. She told the conmittee her
duties include injury prevention and she would like to speak
about the poison prevention portion of the resolution. V5.
Mur phy [holding up a highlighter pen] told the commttee this
woul d be very valuable to a teen who wanted to huff. Al the
ot her substances the commttee spoke about are dangerous, but so
is a highlighter and it can be picked up for $.99. She told the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -11- March 4, 2003



commttee she puts together the annual report for poison control
for the State of Al aska. Poi soning is the tenth |eading cause
of injury death and the eighth |eading cause of non-fatal
hospitalized injuries to Al askan children ages 0-19 from 1994
through 1998 [the nobst current statistics available]. MVe.
Murphy told the commttee the national fatal poisoning rate for
the years 1994 through 1999 is 6.5 for 100, 000. Al aska has a
very snmall population with a very large problem She urged the
commttee to pass HCR 8. Ms. Mirphy provided the commttee wth
background information on the injury surveillance and prevention
program

Number 2092

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked about the map on Al aska for the rate
per 100,000 [population] by region from 1994 through 1999 and
asked if the rate was a total for all five years or an average
yearly rate.

M5. MJRPHY responded that it is for the entire tinme period from
1994 t hrough 1999.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON responded that if these rates are for a
five-year period and if the conmittee wanted to ook at it per
year, then, for exanple, the total for the "Interior (Rural)" -
which is 51.31, divided by 5, gives a rate of 10 per year.

M5. MJRPHY said she does have a chart that shows approximately
nine children under the age of four are injured severely enough
to be hospitalized [statistics fromtrauma registry data]. She
told the commttee the statistics are dated and the departnent
is still working on the 2000 and 2001 dat a.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the conparison with the United
States that she provided was based on an annual rate.

M5. MURPHY replied that it was also a five-year rate.
REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked if there is any substantial research
done on this subject. She asked where the departnent gets nost
of the information on kinds of incidents and prevention efforts.
Nunber 2148

M5. MURPHY replied that the information cones from a variety of

sources. The report provided to the conmttee was put together
by the Oregon Poison Center [an organization the state is

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -12- March 4, 2003



col laborating wth]. She told the <commttee her rate
information canme from the Al aska Traunma Registry which is a
registry that Ilists all hospitalized patients and fatality
information, which is provided by the Al aska Bureau of Vital
Statistics.

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA asked if there is any effort in Alaska to
|l ook for funding sources to do extensive research on this
subj ect . She said when Alaska finds it is the leader in the
nation in sonme indicator, it is inportant to find solutions and
export that know edge.

M5. MURPHY responded that the departnent is in the process of
doing that under a federal HRSA [Health Resources and Services
Adm ni stration] grant. In fact, this is how the poison center
col | aboration effort cane about. She said currently education
has focused on getting the word out on the 1-800 nunber, but
expressed hope that the next round of federal grant funding wll
allow the departnent to expand that into nobre conmunity
out r each. Ms. Murphy said she is currently attending as nmany
health fairs as possible to get the word out.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER said she believes the nunbers are very
| ow. She asked how the departnment is characterizing fatal and
nonfatal poisonings in Al aska. She told Ms. Mirphy that it
seens artificially low to find only 20 people in her region
having a fatal or non-fatal poisoning during a five-year period.

Nunber 2243

M5. MJRPHY replied the nunber is a rate per 100,000, not a
nunber of individuals.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER said the figure still seens very | ow.
M5. MJRPHY said the nunbers vary fromyear to year

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked if poisonings would including
peopl e who di e of inhalant abuse.

M5. MJRPHY replied that it would include inhalant deaths, but
nost of the poisonings that are reported to the poisoning center
do not include inhalants, because generally by the tinme the
victim has gotten to the hospital the condition is classified as
a poi soning. She said that could change, but it would require
goi ng back over the nunbers.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -13- March 4, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER said a nunber of years ago, five or six
people died in one of the villages because the person who was
running the water treatnment facility put too nuch fluoride in
the water. Wuld that be classified as a poi soni ng?

M5. MURPHY replied that it would be classified as a poi soning.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he does not think the statistics
relate to the problem the Kenai Peninsula is experiencing. This
rate of 28.43 per 100,000 people for five years would reflect
| ess than one person per year. He said if it was just his
district it mght be plausible; however, there are three
districts on the Kenai Peninsula. Representative Seaton said he
does not believe these statistics reflect the issue of
recreational huffing. He said he believes Ms. Mirphy's report
is dealing with a different problem

Nunmber 2358

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA noved to report HCR 8 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and a zero fiscal note. There
being no objection, HCR 8 was reported from the House Health
Educati on and Social Services Committee.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS

Board of Education and Early Devel opnent

TAPE 03-21, SIDE B
Number 2315

CHAIR WLSON announced that the commttee would return to
confirmation hearings for appointees to the Board of Education
and Early Devel opnent.

SYLVI A REYNOLDS, Appointee to the Board of Education and Early
Devel opnent, gave the conmttee a brief history of her 24 years
of service in public education, 18 of those in Alaska. She told
the commttee she has served in nunerous positions throughout
the state including schools in Nome, Juneau, and Sol dotna. She
said the experience she has provides her with a background of
working with students from early education through postsecondary
educat i on. V5. Reynol ds highlighted her background and
experience in teaching and adm ni strati on.

Nunber 2275

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -14- March 4, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE WOLF asked if her service on the board would
prevent her from continuing her work at K-Beach Elenentary
School .

M5. REYNOLDS told the <conmttee she has taken that into
consideration and believes that with the help of a young woman
who is doing her admnistrative internship; she wll have
soneone to cover for her while she attends neetings.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF told the commttee that M. Reynolds has
done an excellent job as principal and that he believes she
woul d be an excell ent choice.

Number 2229

CHAIR WLSON asked if she sees a difference in education in
Al aska as opposed to other states she has worked in.

M5. REYNOLDS responded that is a difficult question. She
believes the great challenge facing Alaska will be neeting the
NCLB requirenents. She said while everyone supports that
concept, there are many paths to achieve this goal. She pointed
out that some students need to |leave school in April to go
whal i ng, and she sees a benefit to bringing that activity into
the curriculum That approach is very different conpared wth
how school curriculumis admnistered in Anchorage or the Kena
Peni nsul a.

CHAIR WLSON shared her experience with a school system where
cl asses started three weeks early so many of the students could
go noose hunting and build a cabin. She said that activity was
done in the first three weeks of school.

M5. REYNCOLDS agreed that anytine there is hands-on | earning
outside the institution, it will be beneficial.

Nunber 2139

REPRESENTATI VE CGATTO asked why she <changed from being a
princi pal at Sol dotna H gh School to K-Beach El ementary School .

M5. REYNOLDS said she believes that after five years in a
| eadership role a principal needs to evaluate if the school has

noved ahead. She said after seven years she believed it was
time to give soneone else a chance to cone in and give the
school other gifts that she may not have had. She told the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -15- March 4, 2003



commttee both high school and elenmentary schools are equally
chal | engi ng.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked what the "710" budget neans.

M5. REYNOLDS responded that the 710 budget is the activities
budget. She said the funds could roll over. M. Reynolds said
wi th budgets declining, these funds nade it possible for her to
do things for Soldotna H gh School that she would otherw se not
be able to do.

Nunber 2048

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF nmade a notion to advance the confirmation of
Sylvia Reynolds, appointee to the Board of Education and Early
Devel opnent, to the joint session for consideration. There
being no objection, the confirmation of Sylvia Reynolds was
advanced.

Nunber 2024

REX ROCK, Appointee to the Board of Education and Early
Devel opnent, gave the commttee a brief history of his service

in public education. He told the committee he graduated from
high school in Point Hope and the University of Al aska
Fai r banks. He said he has been serving on the Point Hope
Advi sory Council for the past 12 to 15 years and has been the
basketbal |l coach at the Point Hope H gh School. M. Rock said
he has two children who are currently attending school at the
University of Al aska. He said he loves to work for kids and

that is his main reason for wanting to serve.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked how Poi nt Hope is doing in
basket bal I . He noted that M. Rock was honored by being naned
State Coach of the Year.

MR. ROCK replied that their current record this year is 15 and
4.

Nunmber 1963
REPRESENTATI VE WOLF made a notion to advance the confirmati on of
Rex Rock, appointee to the Board of Education and Early

Devel opnent, to the joint session for consideration. There
bei ng no objection, the confirmation of Rex Rock was advanced.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -16- March 4, 2003



ADJ OQURNMVENT

Number 1955

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Committee neeting
was adjourned at 4:00 p.m

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -17- March 4, 2003



